
 

COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
General Services Department 

Purchasing Division 

701 OCEAN STREET, SUITE 330, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060-4073 

ADDENDUM #1 
Request for Proposal RFP 22P2-002 

FOR 
 

 Business Process Review and Project Management Consultant  
Issued December 30, 2022 

 

This addendum (#1) is being issued to answer questions posed by prospective vendors regarding RFP 22P2-
002. 
 
Vendor #1 
1.  What budget allocation has the county set aside for this contract? 

The consultant contract costs will be paid for by the County’s technology fund. A specific amount 
has not yet been budgeted for this project. The budget will be set after review of the RFP 
responses. 

2.  The Proposal Evaluation Criteria indicate that 25% of the proposal evaluation is based on price. Please 
describe what criteria the County is using to evaluate price. For example, are you using a formula to 
evaluate price as a percentage of the lowest price bid? 

The criteria would be a combination of total cost and the combined hourly rate of the consultant(s) 
proposed. Each RFP response will reasonably vary in the number of hours proposed to complete 
the project so the key element will be the hourly rates and the reasonable average range of total 
hours proposed. 

3.  Does the County have an anticipated timeline for issuing the RFP for the new HR/Payroll system?  

The County is anticipating including the cost for the new HR/Payroll system in a Spring 2023 bond 
issuance. It is expected that the timeline for issuing the RFP for the HR/Payroll software will be as 
soon after the date when the bonds are issued, and funding is guaranteed.  

Relatedly, how long does the County anticipate that the Business Process Review and Project 
Management Services described in section 3.2.1 will take? 

The County has materially completed a Business Process Review (BPR) of the Payroll System 
using inhouse staff but has not started a review of the HR system. The County does not have an 
estimate for how long the system review and project management services will take as that will 
vary based upon when the consultant(s) can begin their work and the methods used by the 
Consultant to complete the BPR.  
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4.  Please describe the County's preferred format for the budget proposal. Section 5 states, " Provide cost for 
the proposed services. Cost propose should include hourly fees itemized, all additional rates and expenses 
listed. Any travel costs will be subject to federal per diem limitations." Is the County looking for an overall 
cost of services (presumably excluding the as-needed, optional services described in Section 3.2.2), or 
only hourly rates and similar? 

The County doesn’t have a preferred format except to be able to easily determine the hourly rates 
for each consultant(s) proposed as well as a reasonable total rate and the range of hours proposed 
to complete both the BPR and preparing, issuing, and assisting the County in selecting the new 
system.  

5.  What is driving the County to procure a new HR and payroll system? What goals does the County hope to 
achieve in the new payroll system?  

As described in the RFP, the County’s current system is homegrown system that was developed 
many years ago. A limited number of Information Services Department staff are available to 
maintain the system on an ongoing basis. The System relies heavily on paper documents and has 
limited reporting and data exporting tools. The County is interested in an efficient system that will 
integrate into the other modern financial and budgeting systems that use workflow approvals, and 
other features while still meeting requirements of Federal, State, IRS and CALPERS reporting. 

6.  The minimum experience qualifications state that " Respondent shall be an established entity that has 
proven experience in delivering Business Process Review and Project Management Services of the nature 
specified herein for at least four (4) years; managing projects with at least a $4 million dollar budget. 
Respondent shall provide a brief statement of company background including years in business and 
experience of support staff and include a minimum of three successful related implementation projects in 
the past ten years (e.g., an ERP project that realized its anticipated business benefits and was delivered in 
a timely manner within budgetary boundaries)." The staff team we would propose for this project would 
easily meet these qualifications, but we have not existed as a company for four years. Will you evaluate our 
experience on the basis of our staff team's background, or will you disqualify us for not meeting the 4-year 
criterion? 

Your company would not automatically be disqualified; however, the rating team would take the 
age of your company into consideration when providing a rating for that section of the RFP as that 
is who the County will be contracting with. 

7.  Does the County intend to use the results of the Business Process Review to make non-technology 
improvements to HR and payroll processes, or only to drive IT requirements for the software RFP? 

The County is open to making improvements in its processes before installing a new system 
depending upon the size, scope, and necessary timing of the changes, however it is expected the 
bulk of the changes will be incorporated in the implementation of the new HR/Payroll System to allow 
us to limit the amount of customizations needed once the software is selected. 
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Vendor #2 
1.  Does the County of Santa Cruz have an anticipated budget for this project? 

The consultant contract costs will be paid for by the County’s technology fund. A specific amount 
has not yet been budgeted for this project. The budget will be set after review of the RFP 
responses. 

2.  Is there an incumbent providing similar services over the last three (3) years? If so, please provide the 
name of the firm.  

There is no incumbent. The County has materially completed a Business Process Review (BPR) of 
the Payroll System using inhouse staff but has not started a review of the HR system.  

3.  Please confirm that this would be a Time and Materials based contract? And if not, please provide 
information on the payment structure.  

 
Yes, Time and Materials is the basis for the contract, however the County prefers to build in some 
milestone payments as well to ensure the scope of work is being completed in a timely manner. 

4.  Please confirm that monthly invoices may be submitted for work accomplished in the previous month? 
 

Yes, based upon the billing schedule agreed to in the final contract, which will incorporate some 
milestone payments. 

5.  Please confirm if this effort is anticipated to be performed on-site or remotely? If there is a combination of 
the two, please provide anticipated percentages of on-site vs remote.  

 
It is expected that this work will be completed using both on-site and remote meetings and 
workshops. The majority of County employees work a few days a week remotely and are very 
familiar with participating in and initiating TEAMS calls. It is expected that some of the Consultant’s 
time will be on site a few times at the beginning of the project and as needed for workshops or 
meetings that would benefit from face-to-face interactions. The percentage would be determined 
once the selected Consultant establishes their work plan. 

6.  Please confirm that for Respondent Qualifications experience requirements (Section 2.20) on page 8 of 25, 
that the experience for Business Process Review and Project Management services can be made up of 
multiple projects to meet the 4-year requirement?  

Yes, it can. However, the rating team will take the age of your company into consideration when 
providing a rating for that section of the RFP as that is who the County will be contracting with. 

7.  Please confirm that for Respondent Qualifications experience requirements (Section 2.20) on page 8 of 25, 
that the company background can include multiple implementation projects within the past 10 years 
regardless of whether or not they were HR / Payroll systems.  

 
Yes, it can. However, the rating team will review the applicableness of your company’s experience 
and take it into consideration when providing a qualifying rating for that section of the RFP. It 
would be critical that the experience be of a similar business field to HR/Payroll.  
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8.  Please confirm that for Respondent Qualifications experience requirements (Section 2.20) on page 8 of 25, 
that the $4 million budget can be made up of multiple projects providing Business Process Review and 
Project Management Services regardless of whether or not they were HR / Payroll Systems.  

Yes, it can. However, the rating team will take the experience your company has in the financial 
arena (Accounting, Payroll, or Budgeting software projects) into consideration when providing a 
rating for that section of the RFP as that is who the County will be contracting with. 

9.  What is meant by fully licensed, insured, bonded, certified Contractors? While Insurance is required, 
providing IT services does not require licensing, bonding, or certification. Please expand on what is meant 
by licensing, bonding and certification? 

 
This question is part of the standard County RFP language. It is suggesting that if your staff hold 
any Project Management certifications that would be appropriate to reflect here, as well as any 
business liability insurance your company maintains.  

 
 
Vendor #3 
1.  What are your expectations regarding on-site vs. remote presence during the term of the project? 

 
It is expected that this work will be completed using both on-site and remote meetings and 
workshops. The majority of County employees work a few days a week remotely and are very 
familiar with participating in and initiating TEAMS calls. It is expected that some of the Consultant’s 
time will be on site a few times at the beginning of the project and as needed for workshops or 
meetings that would benefit from face-to-face interactions. The percentage would be determined 
once the selected Consultant establishes their work plan. 

2.  Can we submit multiple rounds of questions before the questions submission deadline? If so, how many?  
 
The deadline for questions is listed in the RFP. There is no limit to the number of questions. 

 
3.  How will the responses be disseminated back to us?  
 

The Purchasing Department will communicate with known vendors who have indicated their 
interest in the RFP in the form of an addendum. This addendum will also be posted to the County 
website 

 
4.  Is it correct that the county is seeking a partner to complete: (1) discovery, (2) current-state business 

documentation, (3) future-state business process documentation, (4) gap analysis, and (5) RFP creation for 
vendor selection of new HR/payroll tool?  

 
Partially, #2, #5 are included in this RFP. The County will be replacing the in-house system. 

 
5.  Will there be an opportunity to bid on implementation of the new tool(s) after tool selection has been made? 
 

Yes as indicated in the RFP outline, if the County and the vendor mutually agree, the contract may 
be extended to include the implementation phase. 
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6.  Specific RFP Questions by Section 
 
3.2 Scope   

a)  Which business units or sub-organizations within the county are using the current web-based in-house 
HR/Payroll system?  Who are your key stakeholders? 

The system is used exclusively for County payroll and HR needs by all County departments. All 
departments are stakeholders as each department has at least one payroll staff person who 
interacts with the system. The larger or unique departments include public works, Health 
Services, Human Services and Sheriff. 

b)  How many current users exist? How many are expected moving forward? 

The current system has around 310 current users with security access. It is expected a similar 
number of users will have access to the new HR/Payroll System         

c)  What platform/technology is the current system built on? 

This system was originally an IBM mainframe-based system written in COBOL in the 1980’s. It 
was migrated from the County’s mainframe in 2009 and converted to ASP.Net application using 
Visual Basic and SQL server database. 

d)  How many existing systems will the new tool be required to integrate with? 

The primary systems in will interact with is the accounting system Finance Enterprise and the 
County’s budget system Open Gov. Payroll also interfaces with eTimecard (in-house developed 
system), Work Order system (in-house developed and JobApps. 

e)  How much of the current system involves customizations to meet existing business processes? 

100%  

f)  Are the goals of this project aligned with the goals of the County? 

Yes 

g)  Which business processes are currently supported by the existing tool 

100% of the processes needed to process payroll and payroll related activities. HR uses the system 
100% for most HR processes however they have one or two other software systems they use for 
managing their job postings or recruitment processes. 

h)  Are there business processes that are not being met or fulfilled by the existing tool? (i.e. net new business 
processes) and are those found in the new tool? 

A new system has not been determined yet. We anticipate there will be a number of efficiencies 
gained with a new system. 

i)  What is the current county HR/Payroll tool and how many licenses need to be purchased? 

Per the RFP outline, the County’s system is completely homegrown. 
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j)  What tools have you investigated or looked at as a replacement for the current HR/Payroll system? 

We have had opportunities to view system demos or publications while attending conferences, 
however we have not performed any formal reviews of replacement software. 

3.2.1 Business Process Review and Project Management Services 

k)  What type of project management support exists within the county today i.e. is there a PMO that we would 
work with? 

This RFP is to hire the Project Manager who would be supported by the department heads and 
assistant department heads of the Payroll, Personnel and Information Services offices. The 
Auditor-Controller is the lead for this project working very collaboratively with the other two 
departments. 

l)  What project management tools are being used inside the county, e.g. ASANA, JIRA to track milestones, 
work plans, status reports? 

The County doesn’t have a standard which allows consultants to be flexible with the tools they 
prefer. 

m)  Are agile methodologies followed by the county or do you require waterfall? 

The County doesn’t have a standard which allows consultants to be flexible with the tools and 
processes they prefer. 

n)  Is there any existing current business process documentation that exists today? Business Requirement 
Documents or Process Flow Charts? 

The Information Service Department has working files for the inhouse HR/Payroll System that 
have been used in the running and maintenance of the software for many years. 

o)  What type of change management/training support exists within your organization today? How many 
trainers do you currently have? 

The County is very aware of the importance of change management and training when a new 
system is being proposed. Following historical practices, the County will designate various SME 
(Subject Matter Experts) to assist with both of these areas of work. 

p)  How accepting or resisting to change are the current stakeholders? 

The current staff and managers have been working with this system for many years and in general 
will embrace a new system. 

4.2 Term of Contract 

q)  When do you expect the new HR/Payroll system to go live? Do you expect to receive certain parts or 
components of the project delivered earlier?  Is there a milestone schedule? 

The County is anticipating including the cost for the new HR/Payroll system in a Spring 2023 bond 
issuance. It is expected that the timeline for issuing the RFP for the HR/Payroll software will be 
as soon after the date when the bonds are issued, and funding is guaranteed. 
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r)  What is your expected cost range for discovery and tool selection? 

The consultant contract costs will be paid for by the County’s technology fund. A specific amount 
has not yet been budgeted for this project. The budget will be set after review of the RFP 
responses. 

s)  What is your expected cost range for tool acquisition and implementation? 

Not yet determined. 

t)  What is your expected cost range for annual support after implementation? 

Not yet determined. 

u)  After successful Go Live and any stabilization period, what type(s) of ongoing support do you anticipate 
the County needing? 

Not yet determined as to what is needed from the new software support team. It isn’t expected 
more support will be needed from the Project Manager we are seeking to hire with this RFP. 

 
Vendor #4 
1. Will the County accept proposals from firms that develop and/or sell software? 

Yes, as long as the proposer can meet the requirements as stated in the RFP. 

2. Does the County have a budget for each area of the Statement of Work (3.2.1 and 3.2.2?) If so, would the 
County be willing to share the budgets for each phase? 

The consultant contract costs will be paid for by the County’s technology fund. A specific amount 
has not yet been budgeted for this project. The budget will be set after review of the RFP 
responses. 

3. Does the County intend that all work completed for both items in Scope 3.2.1 and 3.2.2 are completed on-
site, remotely, or hybrid? 

It is expected that this work will be completed using both on-site and remote meetings and 
workshops. A majority of County employees work a few days a week remotely and are very familiar 
with participating in and initiating TEAMS calls. It is expected that some of the Consultant’s time 
will be on site a few times at the beginning of the project and as needed for workshops or meetings 
that would benefit from face-to-face interactions. The percentage would be determined once the 
selected Consultant establishes their work plan. 

4. In Section 3.2.2, the request for continued project management services to be provided upon request at 
standard rates specified in Section 5, refer to the itemized hourly fees and additional rates and expenses 
listed, as well as travel costs as subject to federal per diem limitations? 

Yes, Time and Materials is the basis for the contract, however the County will work with the vendor 
and their project plan to build in some milestone payments as well to ensure the scope of work is 
being completed in a timely manner. 
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Vendor #5 
1. Does the County have a budget for this project? If yes, can the amount be shared?  
 

The consultant contract costs will be paid for by the County’s technology fund. A specific amount 
has not yet been budgeted for this project. The budget will be set after review of the RFP 
responses. 
 

2. Would the County like to have HR/Payroll processes diagrammed? If yes, can those processes be shared? 

The County has materially completed a Business Process Review (BPR) of the Payroll System 
using inhouse staff but has not started a review of the HR system. The County does not have an 
estimate for how long the system review and project management services will take as that will 
vary based upon when the consultant(s) can begin their work and the methods used by the 
Consultant to complete the BPR. 

3. Does the County have an on-site preference for specific tasks? If yes, what tasks? 

It is expected that this work will be completed using both on-site and remote meetings and 
workshops. The majority of County employees work a few days a week remotely and are very 
familiar with participating in and initiating TEAMS calls. It is expected that some of the Consultant’s 
time will be on site a few times at the beginning of the project and as needed for workshops or 
meetings that would benefit from face-to-face interactions. The percentage would be determined 
once the selected Consultant establishes their work plan. 

4. Does the County have a preference for a local vendor?  

Yes, the RFP outlines the local vendor preference information. 

5. Does the County desire inclusion of customers or external stakeholders as part of this project?  

Yes, for the Business Process Review portion the key staff in the HR/Personnel Department will be 
included. As the project moves along and demonstrations and proposals are evaluated there will be 
both an executive leadership team and a key user team developed. 

6. Has the County identified an internal project team? If yes, can the project team be shared? 

This RFP is to hire the Project Manager who would be supported by the department heads and 
assistant department heads of the Payroll, Personnel and Information Services offices. The 
Auditor-Controller is the lead for this project working very collaboratively with the other two 
departments. 

7. Would it be acceptable to provide an hourly rate and estimated hours per month for the optional 
implementation phase? 

Yes, Time and Materials is the basis for the contract, however the County will work with the vendor 
and their project plan to build in some milestone payments as well to ensure the scope of work is 
being completed in a timely manner. 
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Vendor #6 
1.  The RFP states that the County anticipates replacing its current HR/Payroll system with a new system that 

integrates with others used by the County. Has the county already identified the systems that it intends to 
evaluate?  

 
We have had opportunities to view system demos or publications while attending conferences, 
however we have not performed any formal reviews of replacement software. 

 
2.  What specific functions does the current HR/Payroll system perform?  

 
The system is used exclusively for County payroll and HR needs by all County departments. 
Including 26 pay periods a year and all year end tax reporting.  

All departments are stakeholders as each department has at least one payroll staff person who 
interacts with the system. The larger or unique departments include public works, Health Services, 
Human Services and Sheriff. 

3.  How many processes does the County estimate will be included in the current business process 
assessment?  

The County does not have an estimate for how long the system review and project management 
services will take as that will vary based upon when the consultant(s) can begin their work and the 
methods used by the Consultant to complete the BPR. 

 
4.  Is the County interested in future state process maps for this engagement? 

While additional information may be provided in the proposal, the RFP responses will only be 
evaluated based on the evaluation criteria set in Section 2. 

5.  Can the county elaborate on what sections (or content) of the RFP they would like assistance in drafting?  
Will there be any support provided by a state or county procurement team? 

The RFP for a new HR/Payroll System would be drafted using the County Procurement’s template. 
The content and requirements reflected in the scope section would be a reflection of what was 
documented in the Business Process Review of both the Payroll Department’s work and the 
HR/Personnel Department’s work and future needs in a modern system. Once it is documented 
what processes and needs the County has then it can be determined what is required in a new 
system. 

The Project Manager who would be supported by the department heads and assistant department 
heads of the Payroll, Personnel and Information Services offices. The Auditor-Controller is the lead 
for this project working very collaboratively with the other two departments. 

6.  Does the County prefer a particular project management methodology or approach? (e.g, Six Sigma, LEAN, 
Agile, Waterfall, etc.).  

 
The County doesn’t have a standard. This allows consultants to be flexible with choosing the tools 
they prefer to perform the requested services. 

 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5D479206-17CA-428D-B7A5-B9C23D70D123



7.  Can the County provide any information regarding key deliverable deadlines?  
 

The County is anticipating including the cost for the new HR/Payroll system in a Spring 2023 bond 
issuance. It is expected that the timeline for issuing the RFP for the HR/Payroll software will be as 
soon after the date when the bonds are issued, and funding is guaranteed. 

 
8.  Does the County prefer onsite or remote engagement for these activities? 

 
It is expected that this work will be completed using both on-site and remote meetings and 
workshops. The majority of County employees work a few days a week remotely and are very 
familiar with participating in and initiating TEAMS calls. It is expected that some of the Consultant’s 
time will be on site a few times at the beginning of the project and as needed for workshops or 
meetings that would benefit from face-to-face interactions. The percentage would be determined 
once the selected Consultant establishes their work plan. 

9.  Is there a set budget for this project? 
 
 The consultant contract costs will be paid for by the County’s technology fund. A specific amount 

has not yet been budgeted for this project. The budget will be set after review of the RFP 
responses. 

 
10.  Is this a new work effort, or the continuation of a previous one? If the latter, who was the previous vendor? 

 
This is a new work effort. The County has materially completed a Business Process Review (BPR) 
of the Payroll System using in-house staff but has not started a review of the HR system. 

                      

All other information remains the same. 
December 20, 2022 was the deadline for all questions regarding this RFP. No further questions will be 
accepted by Purchasing. 

RFP SUBMITTAL DEADLINE REMAINS UNCHANGED. 
RFP DUE: 
January 13, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. PST 
In the Purchasing Division of General Services 
701 Ocean Street, Room 330 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 

 

 
           ___________ 
Maralise Howze         Date 
Maralise.Howze@santacruzcounty.us 
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